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Cabin John Agueduct, located one-half mile west of Glen
Echo, Maryland, and four-tenths of a mile north of the Poto-
mac River, carries MacArthur Boulevard traffic on the bridge
(E/W) over Cabin John Creek (N/S) and over the-rCabin John
Parkway (N/S). The Cabin John Agueduct conduit is located
within the bridge structure under the boulevard.

Cabin Johh Aqueduct is comprised of one principal arch
segment of 110 degrees which has a span of 220 feet and a
height at the center of 57 feet three inches. Five additional
arches and four spandrel spans form the remainder of the
structure, but they are concealed from view in the appended
photograph. The weight of the principal arch rests on its
own pilings.

The facing stone of the Aqueduct is Senecca {(Maryland)
sandstone except for Quincy (Massachusetts) granite in the
arch ring and Port Deposit (Maryland) granite in the skew-
backs. The backing stone, dug from a nearby gquarry, is
"blue" or "Potomac” gneiss. The lead and brick lined conduit,

S with an average fall of nine inches per mile, acts as an
L arch, providing support for the bridge. A steel door in
<5 ecach abutment provides access to the interior of the bridge.

The deck of the Cabin John Agueduct, originally of sand-
stone, was turned into an asphalt roadbed in 1873. The
roadway is 17 feet two inches wide over the main arch and
19 feet two inches wide over the abutments and approach spans.

The flat surface of the agueduct is relieved by two pro-
jecting courses at the parapet.

Cabin John Agueduct is on its original site.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE ;

The 220 foot span single arch was, from 1863-1903, the
unchallenged longest stone masonry arch in the world. De-
signed by Montgomery Cunningham Meigs (1816-1892) of the
United States Army Corps of Engineering, it was an innova-
tional feat of nineteenth-century engineering. The ingenious
features of the agueduct include the method of the control of
water flow and water distribution as designed by Meigs. The
use of the water main itself as a supporting member of the
arch is an innovation.

. The strength and durability of the arch is further
attested to by the fact that it remains in continuous use
(1971) to carry E/W traffic on MacArthur Boulevard over
, Cabin John Creek. The aqueduct inside the bridge provided
E the principal source of water to Washington, D. C., through-
i out the late nineteenth century. At peak capacity the con-
duit transported forty million gallons of water per day to
the District of Columbia. By 1968 the agueduct supplied the
city with twenty percent of its water.

INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE

The United States Congress, fearing a water famine in
1852 in Washington, D. C., ordered the construction of an
s : agueduct. President Millard Fillmore wrote the War Department
- on September 13, 1852, initiating the construction of an
agqueduct.

. On November 3, 1852, the War Department gave Lieutenant
Meigs, Army Corps of Engineers, the responsibility for the
construction of the aqueduct.

Georgia-born Meigs, who graduated fifth in the Class of
1836 from the United States Military Academy, West Point,
was a major architect-engineer in the Washington, D. C. area
as well as an outstanding soldier. His first, and favorite,
design commission was the Cabin John Agqueduct, known then

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
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Cabin John Aadueduct

$#8. SICGNIFICANCE continued

as the "Union Arch," the mid-nineteenth-century aqueduct which
supplied Washington, D. C. with water. The innovational fea-
tures of the agueduct, as well as those of the other three
bridges in the agueduct system, in particular the elliptical
Bridge Number Three, set this project as a major landmark in
the history of American engineering as well as in Meigs'
career. Meigs' other engineering accomplishments -include his
design and supervision of the construction of the wings and
dome on the United States Capitol (1853-1859); supervision

of the extension of the General Post Office in the District

of Columbia (1855~1859); plans for the War Department Building
of 1867; supervision of the National Museum (1876); and the ex-
tension of the Washington agueduct (1876). Meigs, in 1882,
after retiring -from the army, was the architect for the Pension
Building in Washington, D. C., a National Register of Historic
¢ Places property.

As ' a soldier, Meigs served the United States in the Civil
P War. In early April 1861, he was sent on a secret mission,
< for President Abraham Lincoln, to Fort Dickens in Florida.
. The following month he was promoted to Brigadier General and
became Quartermaster General. While serving in General U. S.
Grant's army at the battles of Fredericksburg and Belle Plain,
both in Virginia, in 1864 and under General William Tecumseh
Sherman in Savannah, Georgia, in January of 1865, his outstand-
ing service won him the praise of James G. Blaine and Secretary
of State William H. Seward, as well as a promotion to Major
General.

Meigs died in 1892 and was buried with high honors at the
NatlonaT Cemetery, Arlington, Virginia.

In 1853 before Meigs began construction of the agueduct
5 for Washington, D. C., he wrote an extensive outline of his
RS design plans including a projection of the growth of the
o population of Washington and a discussion of a method for £i1-
‘tering water at a time when that subject was virtually unknown.

Construction of the Cabin John Aqueduct began in 1853
under the direction of Meigs. Alfred L. Rives, educated at
the University of Parish, was the resident engineer.

P iiiaN
"ﬁ' In order to speed efficient construction of the aaueduct
and bridge, an additional lock was installed in the Chesapeake

(1 of 3 continuation sheets)
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$8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

and Ohio Canal 1,000 feet to the south, which dammed up Cabin
John Creek allowing mule-drawn barges to float all necessary
supplles to the site. Construction proceeded SW1ft1y, by 1857
the main arch ring was completed. Progress slowed down after
1859 owing to a lack of funds; it was not until December 3, 1863
that the arch was completed. The agueduct was put in operation
on July 29, 1864.

The technical advances embodied by the design of the arch
were immediately recognized in Europe in an English book (1867)
on waterworks by Zerah Colburn and William H. Maw, and in
Annals des Points et Chaussies, published in France in the
1860's. The significance of the agueduct, however, failed to
reach the American public until a later date. :

_ During the Civil War the United States Army kept a constant
e guard over the agueduct in order to protect the Capital's
i principal source of water.

Lbcal residents used the agueduct as a bridge over Cabin
John Creek. The traffic necessitated the construction of an
asphalt road bed in 1873 in addition to parapets as guard
rails.

The anomosity during the Civil War affected the bridge
when Jefferson Davis' name was effaced from a plaque on the
arch. DPavis was Secretary of War in 1853 when construction
began. In 1862 the Secretary of the Department of the Interior
ordered Robert McIntyre, a contractor, to remove Davis' name

under the cover of darkness. The name of the Confederate
President was restored in 1909 by order of President Theodore

Roosevelt.

One of the unique features of the Cabin John Aaueduct, the
steel doors in each abutment giving access to the interior of
the arch for maintenance, also served another function.
According to local history the interior of the bridge was used
to hide fugitive slaves fleeing to Canada on the Underground
Railroad.

The Union Arch, so called at the time of its construction,
became known as Cabin John Bridge--named for Captain John, a
hermit, who lived in a cabin near the bridge site. In 1962
wvhen a highway bridge over the Potomac at Cabin John Creek was

(2 of 3 continuation sheets).
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S called Cabin John Bridge, the older acueduct bridge was
S named "0l1d Cabin John Bridge."
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Zerah Colburn and William H. Maw (eds.), The Waterworks of
‘ London, Together With A Series of Articles on Various

Cabin John File,

Washington, D. C.

1

Other Waterworks, Tondon: E. & F. N.

Office of Robert M. Vogel, Division of Mech- ‘
anical and Civil Engineering,
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Name Cabin John aAqueduct: .

Planning érea/Site Number 35t 3. MNCPPC Atlas Reference
.aup 21 Coordinate A-14

Address hacirthur Boulevard over

tabin John Creek & over Cabin John Yarkway

Classification Summary

Category__ siructure

Ovnership_Jwhlic

Public Acquisition —-

Status Uecunied

Accessible_LUnrestricted

Present use__ Government; “ranspcriation; bridge aqueauct

Previous Survey Recording Federalx State___ County Local

National Register, 1972
Date 1859-18653

Apparent Condition

g 1 Criginal Site
PSR cepitent c. ;riging

b Unaltered

Description

Cabin John Aqueduct is a single arch bridge carrying traffic over
Cabin John Creek and Parkway and containing a water conduit within its
structure, It is built chiefly of Seneca sandstone and the weight of
the arch rests on its own pilings. There are steel doors in each
abutment for interior access. The roadway atop the aqueduct has been
covered with asphalt.

Significance Arc.hitect-ure; sngineering; Uransportation; Construction

Cabin John Aqueduct/Bridge is a viable link with the past and
an architectual innovation unique in the era of its origin.

The bridge, designed by Maj. Gen. Montgomery Cunningham Meigs,

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, was the world's longest (220 Ft.) stone
masonry arch for 40 years. Outstanding features include the method of
control of flow and distribution of water and use of the water main as an
arch support. It has remained in continuous use since its completion

and for many years was Washington's main water source.

U.S. Congress ordered the bridge constructed in 1852 to prevent a
water shortage in the capital. Guarded carefully during the Civil War,
the removal of Jefferson Davis's name from a plaque in the bridge reflected
the feeling of the time. IToeal history has it that fugitive slaves were
hidden inside the structure. Union Arch later became known as Cabin John
Bridge, said to be named for a hermit who lived in a nearby cabin. The
Arch was completed in 1863 and the agqueduct put in operation in 1864,

Daie ressearclied . : .
1972 Nancy Miller, Md. Historical Trust

Compiler - 13. Date CompiledaFall 1978 1L, Desiznation
Ann Harris Approval
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M: 35-37

Cabin John A d
Coleman, Margaret Marshall and Anne Dennis Lewis aueduct

1984 Montgomery County: A Pictorial History. Norfolk: Donning Co.

—

Built in 1857, the sandstone-
constructed Union Arch looks like a
rainbow in the sky over the small
hotel. Guests apparently arrived by
descending the steep steps from
Conduit Road (MacArthur Boule-
vard), strolling the rustic path, and
crossing the picturesque low bridge.
Today the small hotel is gone, but

| the bridge remains. Courtesy of

Library of Congress

At the Montgomery Lane-Wisconsin
Avenue intersection near Edgemoor
in Bethesda, W. J. O’'Donnell once
sat beside his blacksmith shop,
patting the head of his old hound
dog.

Shown here, Mr. O’Donnell’s new
wagon wheel replacements contrast
sharply with the trolley tracks in the
foreground. The smith had enough
customers, but he augmented his
income by renting advertising wall
space to the Corby’s Mother’s Bread
and Laxtos companies. Courtesy of
Brooks Photographers

123



Coleman, Margaret Marshall and Anne Dennis Lewis M: 35-37
1984 Montgomery County: A Pictorial History. Cabin John Aqueduct

Norfolk: Donning Company.

Mules pull freight over the Union JOhn Clark founded this store on the Willson, Clark’s son-in-law, fol-
Arch, circa 1865. Courtesy of Library Frederick-Georgetown Road. One of lowed Clark in the merchandising
~—~.of Congress “the Civil War-period telegraph poles business. Courtesy of Boyds/Clarks-
lining theroad was used as a hitching burg/Germantown Historical
post for shoppers’ horses. William Society
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In 1857 scaffolding was in place for
the Union Arch across Cabin John
Creek, part of the conduic bringing
water to Washington from the
Potomac. The name “Cabin John” is
thought to stem from that of Captain
John Smith, who described the
Potomac in 1608 and traveled close to
the creek that bears his name.
Sandstone from the quarries at
Seneca was brought by canal and laid
17 place; then the timbers were
removed. The bridge was a genuine
triumph for American engineers. It
was the largest single-span stone arch
in the world, and it witnessed many %

\

changes. According to local legend, Theodore Roosevelt in 1909. A small
slaves hid in a secret passageway, hotel was built in the sylvan setting
making the arch part of the under- “underneath the bridge, which flour-
ground railroad. Jefferson Davis was ished at first, but was later aban-
secretary of war when this photo- doned. Conduit Road was renamed

graph was taken, and his name was MacArthur Boulevard to honor the
engraved on the brass marker. His World War I1 here-Con rte X f

name was removed when he became L,Jntary @gre
president of the Confederate States of—7 ;
America; it was restored b)/)arcs/rd a \
o ' 3 ’, : . 4

J 0

\ va

M: 35-37
Cabin John Aqueduct
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